








 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  1A 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071of the Texas 
Government Code to deliberate and seek legal advice regarding the operation of Hunters 
Crossing Public Improvement District and Whiteaker, et al v. Forestar Group, Inc. et. al, Cause 
No. 423-5020, filed in the 423rd Judicial District, Bastrop County, Texas, along with 14 other 
property owner lawsuits making identical claims against the same 12 named defendants in which 
the City and the Hunters Crossing Local Government Corporation are listed among the 
defendants and are currently pending in the Bastrop County district courts. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  1B 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the 
Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice related to the July 
28th Community Bus Tour with the Planning & Zoning Commission of Capital Improvement 
Projects/Developments and drainage sites, and the status of evaluating and updating the city’s 
regulatory program, including public comment and citizen input into the new subdivision 
ordinance, pending revisions to zoning and sign codes, and uniformity of the permitting process, 
and goals for stormwater plans and improvements. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM:  2 
 
 
TITLE:   
Take any necessary or appropriate action on matters posted for consideration in closed/executive 
session 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 6A 
 
TITLE:   
Receive Presentation from the YMCA of Austin - Bastrop Branch 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Hospitality & Downtown Director 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
In 2017, the Bastrop City Council approved contractual service agreements and a charitable 
funding agreement associated with operating, supporting, staffing and providing free or 
discounted cost recreation programs to the community and for services associated with operating, 
staffing and providing a public pool with the YMCA of Austin-Bastrop Branch. Prior to 
consideration of a contract renewal or discussion of expanding services, YMCA Director Terry 
Moore will be presenting an overview of the services, value, and impact that the organization 
provides the citizens of Bastrop and the City.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The FY 19 Budget proposal will include continued funding for the State Park Pool operations and 
an expansion of recreation services for the YMCA of Austin-Bastrop Branch. City Council will 
consider one combined contract at the September 25th Council meeting.  The contract for 
services and funding will clearly state the expectations, reporting requirements and outlining the 
partnership between the YMCA of Austin-Bastrop Branch and the City of Bastrop. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
FY 18 funding for recreation services was allocated from the General Fund. FY 18 funding for 
operating the State Park Pool was allocated from Bastrop Power & Light and the Water and 
Wastewater Fund. Staff will make similar recommendations for FY 19.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive presentation and provide feedback to staff for consideration in development of the FY 19 
contractual agreement.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
#  YMCA - 2018 Agreement Recreation Services  
#2 YMCA- 2018 Agreement Services for State Park Pool 
#3 YMCA- 2018 BP&L Funding Agreement 
 





































BASTROP Y
STRONGER TOGETHER

The Y is a diverse organization of men, women and children
joined together by a shared commitment to strengthen
community through youth development, healthy living and
social responsibility. Our membership is 22 million strong,
and spread across more than 2,700 Ys nationwide. Since no
two communities are exactly alike, no two Ys are exactly
alike. We bring men, women and children—just like you—
together to nurture the potential of children and teens,
improve health and well-being and foster a sense of social
responsibility, so everyone has the opportunity to learn, grow
and thrive.



TRAINING AND SUPPORT
THE Y COMES WITH RESOURCES

ALL STAFF TRAINING:
• NEW HIRE 

ORIENTATION
• BLOODBORNE 

PATHOGENS
• CHILD ABUSE 

PREVENTION
• CPR/FIRST AID

HEALTH & WELLNESS
• YMCA FOUNDATIONS OF 

GROUP EXERCISE
• SPECIALTY 

CERTIFICATION 

LIFEGUARD 
• CPR PRO
• LIFEGUARD CERTIFICATION

LEADERSHIP 
• LEADING & COACHING 

OTHERS
• MEMBERSHIP EXPERIENCE
• CULTURAL LENSES
• LEADERSHIP 

CERTIFICATIONS
• AND MORE



HOW WE SERVE
WELCOMING TO ALL

Programs

PickleBall
219

Soccer 197

Teen night           141

Homeschool PE    143

Senior Fitness     1209

At the BASTROP YMCA, we are devoted to 
engaging and connecting all segments of 
our community, particularly those in 
underserved and isolated neighborhoods. 
Everyone is welcome here. We believe 
diversity enriches and enlivens our Y.

City Contract

Events
Snow Day
Feel Good Day
Healthy Kids Day
Plant a Flower/Kite Day
Homeschool Field Day
Family Play Day
Safety Month



IN ADDITION…..
PROGRAM OFFERINGS INCLUDE

• American Sign Language
• Parents Night Out
• Kids Fit Dance
• Adventure Hikes
• Creative Writing
• Art
• Track League
• Volleyball League
• Cooking Classes for all ages
• Flick N Float
• River Adventures
• 20+ Fitness Classes per week
• Childwatch



NURTURING COMMUNITY
THROUGH EVENTS
COMMUNITY EVENTS:
CHICK FIL A HALLOWEEN
HALLOWEEN FEST
CHRISTMAS PARADE
JUNETEENTH PARADE
STRONG FAMILIES INITIATIVE END OF SUMMER BASH
BISD BACK TO SCHOOL BASH

ORGANIZING PARTNER:
HAPPY HEALTHY NEW YEARS BASH
HEALTHY TEXAS WEEK
Y ASSOCIATION TRACK MEET
HEALTHY KIDS DAY
PLANT A FLOWER/FLY A KITE DAY
EASTER EGG HUNT
FAMILY PLAY DAY
HOMESCHOOL FIELD DAY
SAFETY MONTH
FREE HUGS DAY



GIVING BACK
STRENGHTENING 
COMMUNITY
THROUGH PARTNERSHIPS THE COMMUNITY 
GARDEN HAS PROVIDED A TOTAL OF 171 LBS OF 
FRESH VEGETABLES TO THE FOOD PANTRY SO FAR 
THIS YEAR.



OUTREACH
EXPANDING HOW WE SERVE

FRIENDSHIP BIBLE 
BAPTIST CHURCH
Providing active play and 
character development

Kindness Rocks
Free to the community 
Opportunity to share 
inspirationTake Home Art

Free to the community 
Inspiring Creativity

Stoney Point 
Outreach
Providing active play 

Swim Safe Program
Offering free swim lessons and 
promoting Safety Around 
Water. Discount Membership

Opportunities



SAFETY MONTH
FOR OUR KIDS



Free Hugs Day
CARING FOR OUR 
NEIGHBORS





It’s been a great year so far!



Looking forward to 
JUMPING OFF INTO WHAT IS NEXT!



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 6B 
 
TITLE:   
Mayor’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Power Point Presentation 

Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mayor’s Report
August 14, 2018



Latest Activities
July 13 – August 2

Events in 2018: 219

TML training

Opportunity Austin
Host - New Republic Studios

Volunteer Fair

Breakfast Bites
Big Vision Luncheon

Film Workshop

Infrastructure Tour

Housing Authority
Summer Finale

Library Summer 
Finale

Rep Michael Cloud

Silver Pines Nursing Home

Casa 
Chapala



Planned Events
August 3 – August 14

• Aug 3 
• Bastrop Homecoming
• First Friday Art Walk

• Aug 4 
• Homecoming Parade
• Pecan Park New Section Grand Opening

• Aug 7 – Special Council Meeting
• Aug 8 – Guest Speaker at Little Sheep Learning Center
• Aug 10 – Restore the F-4 Event
• Aug 14 – Council Meeting



Upcoming Events & City Meetings

• Aug 17 – Texas Health and Human Services Welcome Speech
• Aug 20

• BEDC Monthly Meeting
• Council Special Budget Workshop

• Aug 21 – Council Special Budget Workshop
• Aug 23 & 24 – TML’s Municipal Policy Summit
• Aug 24 – Ribbon Cutting Physicians PremiER
• Aug 27 – Board and Commission Interviews
• Aug 28 – City Council Meeting 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM:  6C 
 
TITLE:   
Councilmembers’ Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
   Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 6D 
 
TITLE:   
City Manager’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018        AGENDA ITEM: 7A 
 
TITLE:  
Review revised Community Support Application based on Council feedback received at the July 
24th meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Mayor and Council brought up some concerns about the Community Support Application 
including the length, the repetitiveness of the questions, and some missing information they would 
like to see captured by this application from the organizations applying. 
 
Finance was asked to incorporate these suggestions into a new application and bring it back to 
Council for a work session to discuss.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
N/A 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Letter to Applicant 
• Revised Community Support Application 



 
Dear Prospective Applicant:  
  
Attached is the application for the 2020 Community Support Funding.   It is with great pride that 
the City of Bastrop enters into an agreement with prospective applicants to provide our 
community with needed programs and services.    
  
The application process consists of the following stages:  

• Application Deadline – June 28, 2019, 5:00pm 

• Organizations to Present to Council – July 23, 2019, 6:30pm 

• Funding approved as part of the budget – September 24, 2019  

 
Required Attachments: 

• Last fiscal year’s IRS Form 990, 990 EZ or 990-N 
• Proposed Budget FY2019 (10/01/2018 – 09/30/2019) as directly related to funding 

requested 
• Copy of 501 (c) letter from the Internal Revenue Service (if new applicant) 
• Provide a list of other sources of funding 
• List of all Board Members 

 
We would like to fund all applicants; however, funding is selective and is based on the application 
you submit.   It is critical that you complete the application in its entirety and attach all required 
documents.  
 

Deadline: 5:00 P.M., June 28, 2019 
(no applications will be accepted after this deadline) 

 
Return the application and required attachments to: 

City of Bastrop  
Finance Department 
1311 Chestnut St.,  
P.O. Box 427 
Bastrop, Texas 78602.  
  

Thank you for your application and we wish your organization much success.  
  

Tracy Waldron 
  

Tracy Waldron 

Chief Financial Officer     



ORGANIZATION INFORMATION:

Official Name of Organization Date

Address City State Zip

Contact Person E-mail

Phone Number Fax Number

Federal ID # State ID #

Funding Amount Requested

Specify how the funds will be used for the program and how the program services benefit City of Bastrop Citizens:

CITY OF BASTROP

2019 COMMUNITY SUPPORT FUNDING APPLICATION

 

If additional space is needed when filling in the application, please attach a 

separate sheet to the application.

Provide a brief summary of your organization and the program you are requesting funds for:

If your organization received funding last year:

Amout Requested: Amount Funded:$ $

$

Describe the results you have experienced with this program and include statistics:



CITY OF BASTROP

2019 COMMUNITY SUPPORT FUNDING APPLICATION

Identify any in-kind services you need, currently receive, or have received in the past from the City of Bastrop:

Yes No

Authorized Signature for the Applicant Date

Name Printed or Typed Title

Electronic/Facsimile submissions will not be considered.

        Verified current 501(c)3 Status

        Good standing on contract reporting requirments

City of Bastrop - Finance Department Use Only

The information contained herein and attached to this application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.  I hereby 

acknowledge that any funding received from the City of Bastrop must be expended as I have represented  in this application and 

according to any requirements set by the City of Bastrop City Council and according the opinion of the City of Bastrop, to the program 

guidelines.  I agree that if funds are not expended accordingly, in  said funds will be returned to the City of Bastrop within ten (10) 

days from the date the City of Bastrop demands such.

Describe how you will track the number of City of Bastrop citizens benefited by the program and provide the number of City of 

Bastrop citiezens who received your services in the last 12 months.

Will you commit to quarterly meetings and leveraging with other non-profit organizations?

If requesting a larger funding amount than last year, what specifically will you spend the increase on:



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 7B  
 
 
TITLE:   
Receive briefing on the City Manager’s submitted budget for FY 2019 as required by the City’s 
Charter. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
None – Council will be provided a copy of the proposed FY 2019 budget at Tuesday’s Council 
meeting. 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 9 
 
TITLE:   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address 
the Council, please submit a fully completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the 
beginning of the Citizens’ Comment portion of the Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot discuss 
issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making a 
statement of specific factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.   
Issues may be referred to City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 
To address the Council concerning any item on the agenda, please submit a fully completed 
request card to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment or 
demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Council to allow a member 
of the public to slur the performance, honesty and/or integrity of the Council, as a body, or any 
member or members of the Council individually or collectively, or members of the City’s staff.  
Accordingly, profane, insulting or threatening language directed toward the Council and/or any 
person in the Council’s presence will not be tolerated. 
 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM:  10A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve minutes from the July 24, 2018 regular meeting and August 7, 2018 
Hearing on Tax Rate. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 

(a)  A governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a tape recording of 
each open meeting of the body. 

(b)  The minutes must: 
 1.  State the subject of each deliberation; and 
 2.  Indicate the vote, order, decision, or other action taken. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve minutes from the July 24, 2018 meeting and August 7, 2018 Hearing 
on Tax Rate. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• July 24, 2018, DRAFT Regular Meeting Minutes. 
• August 7, 2018, DRAFT Hearing on Tax Rate Meeting Minutes. 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 24, 2018 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 M I N U T E S  O F  R E G U L A R  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  
B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  

July 24, 2018 
 

The Bastrop City Council met in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, July 24, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. at 
the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were Mayor Schroeder, Mayor Pro Tem Nelson and Council Members Ennis, 
Rogers and Peterson.  Officers present were City Manager Lynda Humble, City Secretary Ann 
Franklin and City Attorney Alan Bojorquez. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
At 6:30 p.m. Mayor Schroeder called the meeting to order with a quorum being present.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Friendship Bible Baptist Church Youth, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION   
Chaplain Lynda Sparks, Police Chaplain, gave the invocation. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
4A. A proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing the City 

of Bastrop as a Healthy Summer Meals for Kids Community. 
Proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and accepted by Mary 
Butler. 
 

4B. Mayor’s Report 
 
4C. Councilmembers’ Report 
 
4D. City Manager’s Report 
 
WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS - NONE 
 
STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS  
 
6A. Receive monthly report from Visit Bastrop. 

Presentation was made by Visit Bastrop President and CEO, Dale Lockett. 
 

6B. Receive presentation on the unaudited Comprehensive Monthly Financial Report for 
the period ending June 30, 2018. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 

 
6C.  Receive presentation on the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending June 

30, 2018. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 

 
6D. Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2019 Community Support Funding.  

Presentations were from: 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 24, 2018 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Austin Habitat of Humanties  
Bastrop County Child Welfare Board 
Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry and Support Center 
Bastrop County Long Term Recovery Team 
Bastrop County Women’s Shelter, doing business as Family Crisis Center 
Bastrop Pregnancy Resource Center 
Boys & Girls Club of Austin and Travis County, Inc. 
 

Mayor Schroeder recessed the Council Meeting at 8:06 p.m. 
 
Mayor Schroeder called the meeting back to order at 8:11 p.m. 
 
6D. Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2019 Community Support Funding. 

CONTINUED 
Presentations were from: 
Children’s Advocacy Center 
Combined Community Action 
Court Appointed Special Advocates 
Feed the Need Missions 
In the Streets Hands Up High Ministry 
Literacy Vouteers of Bastrop 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
SPEAKER(S)  
 
Debbie Moore 
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Nelson to approve Items 8A and 8B listed on 
the Consent Agenda after being read into the record by City Secretary, Ann Franklin.  
Seconded by Council Member Jones, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   
 
8A. Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the July 10, 2018 meeting.  
 
8B. Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2018-13 of the City 

Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, amending the Bastrop Code of Ordinances by 
amending Chapter 3, Titled “Building Regulations,” Article 3.20, “Signs,” to establish 
regulations for electronic message (L.E.D.) Signs; providing for an effective date; 
providing for severability; providing for proper notice and meeting. 

 
ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 
9A. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-55 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas, authorizing proceeding with the issuance of City of Bastrop, Texas 
certificates of obligation; directing publication of notice of intention to issue certificates 
of obligation; other related matters; and establishing an effective date. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 24, 2018 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve Ordinance No. R-
2018-55, seconded by Council Member Ennis, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   

 
9B. Consider action to approve Resolution R-2018-56 of the City of Bastrop, Texas 

amending the City Council Rules of Procedure; establishing a repealing clause; and 
establishing an effective date. 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Nelson to approve Ordinance No. R-2018-
56, seconded by Council Member Peterson, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   

 
9C. Consider action to approve Resolution R-2018-57 of the City of Bastrop, Texas 

approving an Escrow Agreement with Seton Family of Hospitals for public 
improvements associated with the construction of a health care facility on 32 acres 
located at the southeast corner of SH 71 and FM 304 in the amount of Eight Hundred 
Ninety-Six Thousand Three Hundred Seventeen and 40/100 Dollars ($896,317.40), 
attached as Exhibit A; authorize the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents; providing for a repealing clause, and establishing an effective date. 
Presentation was made by Interim City Engineer, Jerry Palady. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve Ordinance No. R-
2018-57, seconded by Council Member Rogers, motion was approved on a 5-0 
vote.   

 
9D. Consider action to approve Resolution R-2018-58 of the City of Bastrop, Texas 

confirming the Mayor’s appointment to the Hunters Crossing Local Government 
Corporation.  
A motion was made by Council Member Ennis to approve Ordinance No. R-2018-
58, seconded by Council Member Peterson, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
The City Council met at 8:54 p.m. in a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, et seq, to discuss the following: 

10A. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 
of the Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice 
related to the status of updating the city’s regulatory program, including public 
comment and citizen input into the new subdivision ordinance, pending revisions to 
zoning and sign codes, and uniformity of the permitting process. 

 
10B. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.072 

of the Texas Government Code to discuss purchase of four (4) pieces of property in 
and around the Downtown area 

 
The Bastrop City Council reconvened at 12:25 p.m. into open (public) session. 
 
TAKE ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MATTERS POSTED FOR 
CONSIDERATION IN CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION 
No action was taken. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 24, 2018 

Page 4 of 4 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourned at 12:26 p.m. without objection. 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 

       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 



SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  August 7, 2018 

M I N U T E S  O F  S P E C I A L  M E E T I N G  
B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  

August 7, 2017 
 

The Bastrop City Council met in a Special Meeting on Tuesday, August 7, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. at 
the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were Mayor Schroeder and Mayor Pro Tem Nelson and Council Members 
Jones, Ennis, Rogers and Peterson.  Officers present were City Manager Lynda Humble and City 
Secretary Ann Franklin.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Schroeder called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
. 

2. ITEM FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 
 

2A. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-60 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas, to place a proposal to adopt a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
(FY2019) on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item; scheduling two public 
hearings on the proposal; and providing an effective date. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve Resolution No. R-
2018-60, seconded by Council Member Ennis, motion was approved on a 5-0 
vote.   
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Adjourned at 6:37 p.m. without objection. 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 

       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 
 

 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 11A 
 
TITLE:  
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-12 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, rezoning 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract, 
Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street from C-2, Commercial 2 to 
CMU, Commercial Mixed Use Character Zone and extend the Downtown Bastrop From-Based 
Code Regulating Plan Area, located within the northeast  Block of SH 95 and Chestnut Street,  
within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A; including a severability clause; and 
establishing an effective date, and move to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for 
second reading. 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 1800 block of Chestnut Street (Exhibit A) 
Total Acreage: 2.44 acres 
Legal Description: 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract, Abstract 11 

2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street 
  
Property Owners: Bob Patterson; Marvin E & Anne P Beck 
Agent Contact: David Meyer, Jr./QuikTrip 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: C-2, Commercial 2 (Heavy) (2.44 acres)  
Requested Zoning: CMU, Commercial Mixed Use 
Future Land Use: Neighborhood Commercial 

 



 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
The applicant has applied to rezone three of the 
five tracts on the northeast corner of SH 95 and 
Chestnut Street to CMU, Commercial Mixed Use in 
the Downtown Bastrop Form-Based Code area, 
with the intent to build a convenience store with fuel 
sales (Attachment 1).  Currently, two tracts are 
zoned CMU, which was adopted in 2015 and the 
other three tracts are zoned C-2, Commercial 2 
(Heavy) (Attachment 3). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prior to the FBC, the entire corner was zoned C-2, Commercial 2.  The official zoning map from 
1991 shows the corner and adjacent lots to be zone C, Commercial. We have not have 
researched further back in the record to determine the zoning prior to 1991. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1991 Zoning Map 
Fuel sales are allowed within the CMU, C-1, and C-2 districts.  The applicant had previously 
pursued C-1, Commercial-1 (Light) for the entire site, but has re-evaluated the site layout and 
believes that they can fit within the CMU district.  In the future, the applicant may ask for a variance 
to the sign code, as the FBC has stricter sign regulations than the standard zoning districts. Any 
variance requests would go before the Zoning Board of Adjustment for consideration.  The CMU 
district is consistent with the Neighborhood Commercial Future Land Use Designation. 
 



 

The five tracts will have go through the subdivision process to create one lot, which also 
necessitates bringing the area into one zoning district.  Through the platting process, any street 
and utility improvements will be reviewed.   
 
All development must provide a Site Development Plan for the private onsite improvements (i.e. 
building, parking, drainage, landscaping).   The development standards are specified in the 
Zoning Ordinance that dictates setbacks, height limits, building materials, landscaping, lighting, 
parking ratios and screening.  Site Development Plans are reviewed and approved 
administratively by planning staff. 
 
The applicant met with neighboring property owner prior to the Planning & Zoning meeting and 
discussed some additional screening/fencing that can be provided along the northern property 
line.  There were some other requests to decrease the speed of Spring Street and install traffic 
calming devices that will be reviewed by staff during the subdivision and site plan process for 
feasibility and if they are allowed by city codes. 
 
A Traffic Impact Analysis will be required during the subdivision process, as well as to apply to 
the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for any requested driveway access on to SH 
95 or Chestnut Street.  TxDOT has not reviewed this request yet, but staff has met to discuss this 
corner with the local office.  Through that discussion, it appears that the only potential access to 
either street would be on Chestnut Street, closer to the C.P. Johnson Lane side and the driveway 
would only allow for entrance through a right turn from west bound traffic on Chestnut, and allow 
for right-turn exits onto westbound Chestnut, and may require additional street improvements by 
the developer for the driveway.  All other access would be from Spring Street and C.P. Johnson 
Lane, which are local city streets. Improvements to these streets will be evaluated and required 
during the subdivision process. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Property owner notifications were sent to 16 adjacent property owners on July 10, 2018. At the 
time of this report, one property owner has discussed the rezoning with staff and is against 
locating a service station at this location, we received two in favor, one against and one with no 
objection.  (Attachment 2) 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Staff recommends the amendment of the zoning district to CMU, Commercial Mixed Use.  Moving 
to CMU is a downzone (less land uses are allowed by right) from the C-2 district that is already in 
place and is consistent with the existing CMU zoning on the two parcels within the block. Bringing 
all 4.22 acres into the CMU district allows the developer to use the standards of the district to 
arrange the site in a fashion that is conducive to a retail sales and service use.  
 
The authority to establish zoning districts and a process for amending boundaries is outlined in 
the Texas Local Government Code Section 211. City zoning districts govern the use and 
development of land, buildings, and structures as a measure necessary to the orderly 
development of the community. 
 
Texas Local Government Code 

Sec. 211.006. PROCEDURES GOVERNING ADOPTION OF ZONING REGULATIONS AND 
DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. (a) The governing body of a municipality wishing to exercise the 
authority relating to zoning regulations and zoning district boundaries shall establish procedures 
for adopting and enforcing the regulations and boundaries. A regulation or boundary is not 
effective until after a public hearing on the matter at which parties in interest and citizens have an 
opportunity to be heard. Before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, notice of the time and 



 

place of the hearing must be published in an official newspaper or a newspaper of general 
circulation in the municipality. 

Notice was published in the Bastrop Advertiser on July 12, 2018 and notice was sent to property 
owners within 200 feet of the property boundary. 

(b)  In addition to the notice required by Subsection (a), a general-law municipality that does not 
have a zoning commission shall give notice of a proposed change in a zoning classification to 
each property owner who would be entitled to notice under Section 211.007(c) if the municipality 
had a zoning commission.  That notice must be given in the same manner as required for notice 
to property owners under Section 211.007(c).  The governing body may not adopt the proposed 
change until after the 30th day after the date the notice required by this subsection is given. 

N/A. Bastrop is not a general-law municipality. 

(c)  If the governing body of a home-rule municipality conducts a hearing under Subsection (a), 
the governing body may, by a two-thirds vote, prescribe the type of notice to be given of the time 
and place of the public hearing.  Notice requirements prescribed under this subsection are in 
addition to the publication of notice required by Subsection (a). 

The notice process was adopted in the Bastrop Code of Ordinances. 

(d)  If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this 
subsection, the proposed change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at 
least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed 
by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: 

(1)  the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or 

(2)  the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

(e)  In computing the percentage of land area under Subsection (d), the area of streets and alleys 
shall be included. 

At the time of this report, no protest has been received. 

(f)  The governing body by ordinance may provide that the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths 
of all its members is required to overrule a recommendation of the municipality's zoning 
commission that a proposed change to a regulation or boundary be denied. 

If the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of the zoning request, the City Council 
must have a minimum vote of 4 out of 5 members to approve the zoning request. 

City of Bastrop Code of Ordinances 
Section 10 – Changes and Amendments to All Zoning Ordinances and Districts contains the 
process for amending the zoning map.  Changes shall only be made: 

A. To correct any error in the regulations or map.  

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007


 

The existing zoning district was adopted through the appropriate process.  The current 
owner wishes to develop these lots as a commercial use, which requires a zoning 
amendment to rezone the entire development area to the same zoning district. 

B. To recognize changed or changing conditions or circumstances in a particular locality. 

The applicant plans to plat five existing tracts into one, which would result in a split zoned 
tract.  This rezoning request will move the area into one district. 

C. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business. 

This does not apply.  The request follows the existing development pattern in the area. 

D. To change the property to uses in accordance with the approved Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The requested zoning change to C-1 is consistent with the Future Land Use designation 
of Neighborhood Commercial shown in the Comprehensive Plan (Attachment 4). 

In making a determination regarding a requested zoning change, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the following factors: 

1. Whether the uses permitted by the proposed change will be appropriate in the immediate 
area concerned and their relationship to the general area and the City as a whole. 

Primary permitted uses allowed by right within the CMU district include many uses in the 
Commercial Uses (Office, Retail, Sales and Service Uses), Educational, Public 
Administration, Health Care and Other Institutional Uses, Multifamily Uses, and 
Manufacturing, Transportation Communication and Utility Uses categories, including 
convenience store with fuel. These uses are appropriate considering the surrounding 
development is primarily commercial and the property is adjacent to SH 95 and Chestnut 
Streets, which are both major collector streets. 

2. Whether the proposed change is in accord with any existing or proposed plans for 
providing public schools, streets, water supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities to the 
area, and shall note the findings. 

The proposed change is in accord and shall not adversely affect the existing public 
schools, streets, or utilities in the area. The area will be required to go through the 
subdivision process and any additional street or utility improvements needed to serve the 
development (if any) will be determined and required through that process. 

3. The amount of vacant land currently classified for similar development in the vicinity and 
elsewhere in the City, and any special circumstances, which may make a substantial part 
of such vacant land unavailable for development. 

There is vacant land classified as commercial in the vicinity and elsewhere in the city. 
Some of the vacant residential land in the vicinity is hindered by lack of utility infrastructure 
(water, wastewater, and/or electric), which requires a longer platting process and 
increases the cost of development. Other vacant residential land in the vicinity is not for 
sale. East of SH 95, commercial development may be hindered by terrain challenges, lack 
of developed street or utility infrastructure, or requires additional regulation by the Lost 
Pines Habitat Conservation Plan (LPHCP). Retail sale and services that are allowed in 



 

commercial districts have a specific target area, and commercially zoned property south 
of 71 or on the west side of the city would not be affected by this property. 

4. The recent rate at which land is being developed in the same zoning classification as the 
request, particularly in the vicinity of the proposed change. 

Over the last 10 years commercial tracts along SH 95 and Chestnut Street have be 
developed at a steady rate, with a gas station and new shopping center to the south at SH 
95 and SH 71, additions to the restaurant and gas station across the street, and retail 
services along Chestnut.  

5. How other areas designated for similar development will be, or are unlikely to be, affected 
if the proposed amendment is approved. 

The area is already zoned for commercial uses. This amendment would be a parallel 
shift/downzone from the current districts, so the change will not affect other areas 
designated for similar development.  

6. Any other factors which will substantially affect the public health, safety, morals, or general 
welfare. 
 
None. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing and voted unanimously to recommend 
approval of the rezoning request to the Downtown Bastrop FBC – CMU, Commercial Mixed Use. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-12 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, rezoning 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract, 
Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street from C-2, Commercial 2 to 
CMU, Commercial Mixed Use Character Zone and extend the Downtown Bastrop From-Based 
Code Regulating Plan Area, located within the northeast  Block of SH 95 and Chestnut Street,  
within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A; including a severability clause; and 
establishing an effective date, and move to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for 
second reading. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A: Location Map 
Attachment 1:  Letter from Applicant 
Attachment 2:  Surrounding Property Owners Notification 
Attachment 3:  Zoning Map 
Attachment 4:  Future Land Use Map 
Attachment 5:  Aerial Location Map 
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2018- 12 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, REZONING 0.398 ACRES OF BASTROP TOWN TRACT ABSTRACT 
11 AND 2.046 ACRES OF BUILDING BLOCK 12 EAST OF WATER STREET 
FROM C-2, COMMERCIAL 2 TO CMU, COMMERCIAL MIXED USE 
CHARACTER ZONE AND EXTEND THE DOWNTOWN BASTROP FORM-
BASED CODE REGULATING PLAN AREA, LOCATED WITHIN THE 
NORTHEAST BLOCK OF SH 95 AND CHESTNUT STREET, WITHIN THE 
CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, TEXAS; AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A; INCLUDING 
A SEVERABLILITY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Quiktrip (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) submitted a request  on 

behalf of the owners Marvin and Anne Beck, and Bob Patterson, for a rezone of 0.398 acres of 
Bastrop Town Tract Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street, 
within the City limits of Bastrop, Texas, hereinafter referred to as “the Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a location map is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as C-2, Commercial 2; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of the 
rezoning was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of the Property, 
and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on the 
rezoning request on July 26, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended approval of the proposed request by a vote of 7-0; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on August 14, 
2018 to consider the Applicant’s request; and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the information 
provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City Council finds that it is in the 
public interest to approve the rezoning. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
  

Section 1:    The Property, situated in 0.398 acres of Bastrop Town Tract Abstract 11 
and 2.046 acres of Building Block 12 East of Water Street located at the northeast corner of SH 
95 and Chestnut Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas as more particularly shown and 
described on attachments Exhibit “A”, shall be rezoned to the Downtown Bastrop Form-Based 
Code - CMU, Commercial Mixed Use Character Zone. 
 

Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or 
application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 



2 
 

 
Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted below, 

or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in accordance with the City’s 
Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 14th day of August 2018. 
 
READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 28th day of August 2018. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 



FARM

SH 95

CHESTNUT

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

SH
 95

 TO
 C

HE
ST

NU
T S

T
CP JOHNSON

Exhibit A 
Location Map

Rezone Request
Quiktrip ³Date: 8/3/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CH
AM

BE
RS

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«95

¬«150

0 80 16040 Feet











SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING

PINE

WALNUT

C
P 

JO
H

N
SO

N
PI

TT

SH 95 TO CHESTNUT ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

Location and Zoning Map
Rezoning Request

C-2, Commercial 2 to CMU, Commercial Mixed Use ³Date: 7/9/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     1 inch = 274.04 feet

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

M L K JR

CH
AM

BE
RS

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«150

¬«95

Legend
FBC Area

Label
Rezoning Request

Legend
Rezoning Request

Form Based Code Area

Zoning District
Neighborhood

Live/Work

Commercial Mixed Use

Civic/Cultural Arts

Downtown Mixed Use

Historic Main Street

Ag/Open Space

Single Family Residential 20

Single Family Residential 7

Manufacured Home

Multi-Family-1

Multi-Family-2

General Retail

Commercial-1

Commercial-2



SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R112396

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R36481

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R36625

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 5
Future Land Use Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/17/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95

Legend
Future Land Use

Parks and Open Space

Rural Residential

Neighborhood Residential

Transitional Residential

Neighborhood Commercial

General Commercial

Professional Services

Downtown Bastrop*

Public and Institutional

Industrial



SH
 95

FARM

CHESTNUT

SPRING
C

P 
JO

H
N

SO
N

SH
 95

 T
O C

HEST
NUT 

ST

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

R81432

R39297
R36633

R36601

R22435R32729 R71075

R36649

R39280

R36793

R36801

R32810

R36617

R45672

R32360

R118911

R47487

R47798

R36785

R84564

R83050

R47797R36665

R32711

R32369

R32756

R36289

R81904

R61242

R112396

R64352

R32405

R112397

R32774

R36481

R32801

R32747

R36641

R47470

R32396

R47796

R75923

R36473

R32720

R36625

R118245

R36657

R47773

R36777

R47470

R123510

R27766

R32378

R36505

Attachment 6
Aerial Location Map

Zoning Map Amendment
Bastrop Town Tract A11 0.398 Acres

Building Block 112 E W ST 2.046 Acres ³Date: 11/17/2017

The acc uracy  and precision of th is  c artographic
data is limi ted and should be us ed for in for m ation
/p lanning pur pos es only.  Th is data does not 
rep lace surv ey s conducted by reg is ter ed Texas
land surv eyors  nor  does  it consti tute  an "official "
veri fic ation of z oning, land us e c las si fic ation, or
 o ther c lass ification s et for th  in  loca l , sta te, or
federa l  r egulator y pr ocess es. T he City  o f Bas trop,
nor  any of i ts em ploy ees, do not m ake any  warranty
of mer chantabi li ty and fitness  for par tic ular pur pos e,
 or  as sum es any legal  liab li ty or res pons ib i li ty for the 
ac curac y, com pletenes s or usefu l lness  of any  s uch
inform ation, nor does  i t r epr esent that i ts use would
not infr inge upon private ly  owned rights.     1 inch = 200 feet

HILL

M
AIN

WATER

PI NE

PECAN

CEDAR

JASPER

FAR M

1AHAYSEL

EMIL E

AUST IN

PI
TT

COLL EGE

BEE CH

M
 L K JR

AR
EN

A

ELM

FAYETTE

LOST PI NES

LINDA

SPR ING

JEFFERSON

CYPR ESS

WAL NUT

GUTIER R EZ

CATALPA

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

GORDON

ROSANKY

NEWTO N

TO
LI

VE
R

CH
AM

BE
RS

CEDAR

SPR ING

ELM

JEFFERSON

FAYE TTEWAL NUT

EMIL E

FAR M

FAYETTE

¬«71

¬«95



Public hearing and consider action to approve Ordinance No.
2018-12 of the city of Bastrop, Texas, rezoning 0.398 acres of
Bastrop Town Tract, Abstract 11 and 2.046 acres of Building
Block 12 East of Water Street from C-2, Commercial 2 to CMU,
Commercial Mixed Use Character Zone and extend the Downtown
Bastrop From-Based Code Regulating Plan Area, located within
the northeast Block of SH 95 and Chestnut Street, within the
city limits of Bastrop, Texas, as shown in Exhibit A; including a
severability clause; and establishing an effective date, and move
to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for second
reading.



Request
• Change the zoning for 3 parcels 

to CMU, Commercial Mixed Use 
and extend the Form-based 
Code Area

• Currently 
• 2 parcels CMU, Commercial 

Mixed Use
• 3 parcels C-2, Commercial 2

CMU C-2



Location
• NE Corner of 

Chestnut and SH 
95



1991 Zoning



Future Land Use
• Neighborhood Commercial 



Section 10 – Changes and Amendments to All Zoning 
Ordinances and Districts
Changes shall only be made:
A. To correct any error in the regulations or map. 
The existing zoning district was adopted through the appropriate process.  The current owner wishes to develop 
these lots as a commercial use, which requires a zoning amendment to rezone the entire development area to the 
same zoning district.

B. To recognize changed or changing conditions or circumstances in a particular locality.
The applicant plans to plat five existing tracts into one, which would result in a split zoned tract.  This rezoning 
request will move the area into one district.

C. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business.
This does not apply.  The request follows the existing development pattern in the area.

D. To change the property to uses in accordance with the approved Comprehensive Plan.
The requested zoning change to CMU is consistent with the Future Land Use designation of Neighborhood 
Commercial shown in the Comprehensive Plan



Development Process
• Establish appropriate zoning:  The CMU district allows for fuel sales (as 

do C-1 and C-2).  Public Review Process

• Subdivision Process:  The five tracts will have go through the subdivision 
process to create one lot.  Through the platting process, any street and 
utility improvements will be reviewed. Public Review Process

• Site Development Plan:  Establishes the plan for private onsite 
improvements. The development standards are specified in the Zoning 
Ordinance that dictates setbacks, height limits, building materials, 
landscaping, lighting, parking ratios and screening. Administrative 
Review Process



Traffic Impact Analysis
• Required for developments that create more than 2,000 Average Daily 

Trips.
• Will be submitted with the Preliminary Plat.
• Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT)

• Driveways onto Chestnut Street and SH 95 are approved by TxDOT.  The 
developer will submit at TIA to TxDOT to determine if any driveways will be 
permitted.

• Discussions with the local office have indicated that the most access that will 
likely be allowed will be a right-in, right-out driveway on Chestnut Street.





Staff Recommendation
• Hold Public Hearing
• Staff recommends the amendment of the zoning district to CMU, 

Commercial Mixed Use and extend the FBC area.  
• Moving to CMU is a downzone (less land uses are allowed by right) from the 

C-2 district that is already in place and is consistent with the existing CMU 
zoning on the two parcels within the block. 

• Bringing all 4.22 acres into the CMU district allows the developer to use the 
standards of the district to arrange the site in a fashion that is conducive to a 
retail sales and service use. 



Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendation
• P&Z recommended approval of the rezoning request by a vote of 6-0 at 

the July 26, 2018 meeting.



Questions?



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 11B 
 
TITLE:  
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-15 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, granting a Conditional Use Permit for a religious 
institution use for Bastrop Bible Church, on 0.145 acres of Building Block 5 east of Water Street, 
located at 606 Pecan Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as shown in Exhibit A; setting 
out conditions; including a severability clause; and establishing an effective date, and move to 
include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for a second reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 606 Pecan Street (Exhibit A)  
Total Acreage: 0.145 acres 
Legal Description: 0.145 acres of Building Block 5 East of Water Street 
 
Property Owner: Bastrop Bible Church 
Applicant Contact(s): John W. Sullivan and Mike Roh 
 
Existing Use: Church programming 
Existing Zoning: N, Neighborhood Bastrop Form-Based Code (Attachment 3) 
Future Land Use: Downtown Bastrop 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Bastrop Bible Church was previously operating educational programming out of a converted 
house on this site. The house is scheduled to move off the property and be replaced with a new, 
permanent structure that provides better use of space. The new structure will provide classroom 
and common space for the Church’s educational and enrichment programming.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of conditional uses is to allow certain uses in districts that under some circumstances 
would not be compatible with other permitted uses but may be compatible if certain conditions 
and development restrictions are met. A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is adopted by Ordinance, 
similar to a standard zoning request, with public hearings at Planning & Zoning Commission and 
City Council meetings, as well as two ordinance readings at separate City Council meetings. 
 
Section 5.2 of the Form-Based Code states that the Planning and Zoning Commission may 
consider the following criteria when approving a CUP: 
 

i. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed 
uses; 



 

This lot is north of the Bastrop Bible Church, south of a bed and breakfast operating in a 
historically designated home, east of single family residential, and across the street from 
Bastrop First Assemblies of God. In the surrounding area, there is a mix of Live/Work, 
Neighborhood, and Neighborhood Tourism zoning districts. The Future Land Use Plan calls 
for Downtown Bastrop. Within the neighborhood, the structures represent various building 
styles and materials, but are mostly brick or wooden structures with porches or stoops facing 
the street. The proposed building is a wooden structure with a porch and door facing the church 
parking lot, which is the side of the building (Attachment 1). 
 

ii. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the permitted uses 
in the base district; 

The building is proposed for Church programming, which is a related use to the Church, and 
generally compatible with the neighborhood uses. The purpose of the CUP is to ensure that 
the structure is compatible within the area. 
 

iii. The nature of the use is reasonable; 

The requested use will remain the same as was in the previous building located on this site, 
and the new building is intended to match the character of the neighborhood. 
 

iv. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated; 

Staff is recommending a series of conditions, that once met, will mitigate negative impacts on 
the surrounding area. These conditions will ensure that the current structure is an improvement 
in appearance and compatibility within the neighborhood, greater than the previous structure 
provided. 
 

v. Any additional conditions specified [to] ensure that the intent of the district purposes are 
being upheld. 

Staff suggests the following conditions for approval of the CUP: 
• The porch must wrap around to the street-front side of the building. 
• A door must be added to the street-front side of the building. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Property owner notifications were mailed to 12 adjacent property owners on July 9, 2018. At 
the time of this report, two responses had been received in favor of the request (Attachment 2). 
 
PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended by a vote of 6-0 to approve the Conditional 
Use Permit for the religious institution use with the following conditions.   
 

1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations. 
2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to occupying the 

building. 
3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year from the date the 

Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 
4. The porch must wrap around to the street-front side of the building. 
5. A door must be added to the street-front side of the building. 



 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-15 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, granting a Conditional Use Permit for a religious 
institution use for Bastrop Bible Church, on 0.145 acres of Building Block 5 east of Water Street, 
located at 606 Pecan Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as shown in Exhibit A; setting 
out conditions; including a severability clause; and establishing an effective date, and move to 
include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for a second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A:  Location Map 
Attachment 1: Conceptual Site Plan  
Attachment 2: Property Owner’s Notification  
Attachment 3: Zoning Map 
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2018-15  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A RELIGIOUS 
INSTITUTION USE FOR BASTROP BIBLE CHURCHON 0.145 ACRES 
OF BUILDING BLOCK EAST OF WATER STREET, LOCATED AT 606 
PECAN STREET, WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, TEXAS; 
AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A; SETTING OUT CONDITIONS; INCLUDING 
A SEVERABLILITY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, Bastrop Bible Church (the “Applicant”) submitted a request for a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a religious use on 0.145 acres of Building Block 5 
East of Water Street, located at 606 Pecan Street, within the City limits of Bastrop, 
Texas, hereinafter referred to as “the Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a location map is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as Form-base Code N, 
Neighborhood Character Zone; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the CUP was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of the 
Property, and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a public 
hearing on the CUP request on July 26, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission, by 
a unanimous vote, recommended approval of the proposed request, subject to certain 
conditions set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the 

information provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City Council 
finds by a majority vote of all members that it is in the public interest to approve the 
CUP. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    A Conditional Use Permit for a religious institution use, situated on 
0.145 acres of Building Block 5 East of Water Street, located at 606 Pecan Street, within 
the city limits of Bastrop, Texas as more particularly shown on Exhibit “A”, shall be and 
is hereby approved with the following conditions to:  
 

a. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations. 

b. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior 



2 
 

to occupying the building. 

c. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year from the 
date the Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the 
ordinance). 

d. The porch must wrap around to the street-front side of the 
building. 

e. A door must be added to the street-front side of the building. 
 

Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, 
or application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. 
 

Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted 
below, or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in 
accordance with the City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

 
READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 14th day of August 2018. 

 
 READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 28th day of August 2018. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 



PECAN

EMILE

AUSTIN

Exhibit A
Location Map 

Conditional Use Permit 
Bastrop Bible Church 
Educational Building ³Date: 6/12/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   

HILL

AUSTIN

EMILE

WA
TE

R

PECAN

MAIN

COLLEGE

JEFFERSON

COLLEGE

¬«71

0 30 6015 Feet













PEC
AN

W
ATER

EMILE

AUSTIN

MAIN

Zoning Map
Conditional Use Permit

606 Pecan Street
Bastrop Bible Church ³Date: 7/20/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     1 inch = 86.24 feet

H
ILL

EMILE

AUSTIN

WALNUT

M
AIN

PEC
AN

W
ATER

JEFFER
SO

N

Legend
Zoning District

Neighborhood

Neighborhood Transition

Neighborhood Professional Office

Live/Work



Public Hearing and consider action to approve Ordinance No.
2018-15 for a Conditional Use Permit for a religious institution
use for Bastrop Bible Church, on 0.145 acres of Building Block 5
East of Water Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as
shown in Exhibit A; setting out conditions; including a severability
clause; establishing an effective date, and move to including the
second reading on the consent agenda for the August 28, 2018
meeting.



Request
• Approve a Conditional Use Permit to allow a church use
• Removing the existing structure and add a new structure that will 

provide classroom and common space the Church’s education and 
enrichment programming.

view from the south



Zoning
• A CUP is required for schools, 

libraries, community/civic 
facilities and religious 
institutions in Neighborhood 
character zone.



Location
• 606 Main Street
• 0.145 acres of 

Building Block 5, East 
of Water Street

Tasting Patio
Distill
-ery



FBC Section 5.2 Conditional Use Permit Regulations
1. The use is harmonious and compatible with surrounding existing uses or proposed uses;

Within the neighborhood, the structures represent various building styles and materials, but are mostly brick 
or wooden structures with porches or stoops facing the street. The proposed building is a wooden structure 
with a porch and door facing the church parking lot, which is the side of the building. 

2. The activities requested by the applicant are normally associated with the permitted uses in the 
base district;

The building is proposed for Church programming, which is a related use to the Church, and generally 
compatible with the neighborhood uses. The purpose of the CUP is to ensure that the structure is compatible 
within the area.

3. The nature of the use is reasonable;
The requested use will remain the same as was in the previous building located on this site, and the new 
building is intended to match the character of the neighborhood.

4. Any negative impact on the surrounding area has been mitigated; 
Staff recommends additional design criteria that will make the structure compatible with the neighborhood.

5. That any additional conditions specified ensure that the intent of the district purposes   are being 
upheld.

Additional criteria on next slide



CUP Conditions
1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop 

regulations.
2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be 

acquired prior to occupying the building.
3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one year 

from the date the Conditional Use Permit is granted (second 
reading of the ordinance).

4. The porch must wrap around to the street-front side of the building.
5. A door must be added to the street-front side of the building.



Staff recommendation
• Hold Public Hearing
• Conduct the first reading of the ordinance for the CUP with the specified 

conditions. 



Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendation
• The P&Z recommended approval of the CUP with the conditions as 

presented, by a vote of 6-0 at the July 26, 2018 meeting.



Questions?



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 11C 
 
TITLE:  
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-16 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, rezoning 0.70 acres of lot 67, within the Bastrop 
Town Tract Abstract 11, from Form-Based Code Character Zone CMU – Commercial Mixed Use, 
to MF-1 – Multifamily 1, located at 1706 Farm Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as 
shown in Exhibit A; including a severability clause; and establishing an effective date and move 
to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for second reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, AICP, LEED AP, Assistant Planning Director 
 
ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: 1706 Farm St (Exhibit A) 
Total Acreage: 1.10 acres 
Legal Description: 1.10 acres out of Farm Lot 67 East of Main St 
  
Property Owners: Ronald and Carole Reynolds 
Agent Contact: NA 
  
Existing Use: Vacant 
Existing Zoning: CMU, Commercial Mixed Use in the Downtown Bastrop Form-Based 

Code 
Requested Zoning: 0.70 acres to MF-1, Multifamily 1  
Future Land Use: Rural Residential 

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The property owner has three lots that are in the process to be platted into a new configuration. 
To keep the zoning boundaries consistent with the new lot lines, the property owners are 
requesting to rezone a 0.70 acre portion of the 1.10 acre lot from its existing zoning designation 
of CMU, Commercial Mixed Use in the Downtown Bastrop Form-Based Code to MF-1, Multifamily 
1. (Attachment 1) The applicant’s request letter is attached as Attachment 2. 



 

      Existing Lot Configuration           Proposed Lot Configuration 

 
 
Without the rezoning, one lot in the new subdivision configuration would be partially within and 
partially outside of the form-based code area. The MF-1 zoning requested is consistent with the 
existing zoning on the rest of the lot. 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Property owner notifications were sent to 6 adjacent property owners on July 9, 2018. At the time 
of this report, two responses had been received, one against, and one with no objection. 
(Attachment 3) 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Staff recommends the amendment of the zoning district to MF-1. The zoning designation keeps 
the delineation of the form-based code area along a lot line and remedies the issue of a split-
zoned lot. The lot currently zoned CMU is getting smaller but is still large enough to conform to 
the CMU zoning requirements. The portion of the lot that is moving from the CMU zoned lot to the 
MF-1 zoned lot is requested to match the MF-1 zoning. 
 
The authority to establish zoning districts and a process for amending boundaries is outlined in 
the Texas Local Government Code Section 211. City zoning districts govern the use and 
development of land, buildings, and structures as a measure necessary to the orderly 
development of the community. 
 
Texas Local Government Code 

Sec. 211.006. PROCEDURES GOVERNING ADOPTION OF ZONING REGULATIONS AND 
DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. (a) The governing body of a municipality wishing to exercise the 
authority relating to zoning regulations and zoning district boundaries shall establish procedures 
for adopting and enforcing the regulations and boundaries. A regulation or boundary is not 
effective until after a public hearing on the matter at which parties in interest and citizens have an 
opportunity to be heard. Before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, notice of the time and 
place of the hearing must be published in an official newspaper or a newspaper of general 
circulation in the municipality. 

Notice was published in the Bastrop Advertiser on July 12, 2018 and notice was sent to property 
owners within 200 feet of the property boundary. 

(b)  In addition to the notice required by Subsection (a), a general-law municipality that does not 
have a zoning commission shall give notice of a proposed change in a zoning classification to 
each property owner who would be entitled to notice under Section 211.007(c) if the municipality 
had a zoning commission.  That notice must be given in the same manner as required for notice 
to property owners under Section 211.007(c).  The governing body may not adopt the proposed 
change until after the 30th day after the date the notice required by this subsection is given. 

N/A. Bastrop is not a general-law municipality. 

(c)  If the governing body of a home-rule municipality conducts a hearing under Subsection (a), 
the governing body may, by a two-thirds vote, prescribe the type of notice to be given of the time 
and place of the public hearing.  Notice requirements prescribed under this subsection are in 
addition to the publication of notice required by Subsection (a). 

The notice process was adopted in the Bastrop Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007


 

(d)  If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this 
subsection, the proposed change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at 
least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed 
by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: 

(1)  the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or 

(2)  the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

(e)  In computing the percentage of land area under Subsection (d), the area of streets and alleys 
shall be included. 

At the time of this report, no protest has been received. 

(f)  The governing body by ordinance may provide that the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths 
of all its members is required to overrule a recommendation of the municipality's zoning 
commission that a proposed change to a regulation or boundary be denied. 

If the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of the zoning request, the City Council 
must have a minimum vote of 4 out of 5 members to approve the zoning request. 

City of Bastrop Code of Ordinances 
Section 10 – Changes and Amendments to All Zoning Ordinances and Districts contains the 
process for amending the zoning map.  Changes shall only be made: 

A. To correct any error in the regulations or map.  

The existing zoning district was adopted through the appropriate process.  The current 
owner wishes to reconfigure their subdivision into a manner that supports development, 
which requires a zoning amendment to rezone the entire development area to the same 
zoning district. 

B. To recognize changed or changing conditions or circumstances in a particular locality. 

The applicant plans to reconfigure three lots, which would result in a split zoned tract.  This 
rezoning request will move each lot into one district. 

C. To recognize changes in technology, the style of living, or manner of conducting business. 

This does not apply.  The request follows the existing development pattern in the area. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

D. To change the property to uses in accordance with the approved Comprehensive Plan. 
The requested zoning change to MF-1 moves the property closer toward the Future Land 
Use designation of Rural Residential shown in the Comprehensive Plan (Attachment 4). 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended by a vote of 6-0 to approve the rezoning 
request.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-16 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, rezoning 0.70 acres of lot 67, within the Bastrop 
Town Tract Abstract 11, from Form-Based Code Character Zone CMU – Commercial Mixed Use, 
to MF-1 – Multifamily 1, located at 1706 Farm Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as 
shown in Exhibit A; including a severability clause; and establishing an effective date and move 
to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda for second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A:  Location Map  
Attachment 1: Zoning Map 
Attachment 2: Applicant Request Letter 
Attachment 3: Property Owner’s Notification  
Attachment 4: Future Land Use Map 
 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE 2018-16 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, REZONING 0.70 ACRES OF LOT 67, WITHIN THE BASTROP 
TOWN TRACT ABSTRACT 11 FROM FORM-BASED CODE 
CHARACTER ZONE CMU, COMMERCIAL MIXED USE, TO MF-1, 
MULTIFAMILY 1, LOCATED AT 1706 FARM STREET, WITHIN THE 
CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, TEXAS; AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A; 
INCLUDING A SEVERABLILITY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Bo and Carole Reynolds (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) 

submitted a request to rezone 0.70 acres of Lot 67, within the Bastrop Town Tract 
Abstract 11, within the City limits of Bastrop, Texas, hereinafter referred to as “the 
Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a location map is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as Form-based Code CMU – 
Commercial Mixed Use; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the rezoning was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of 
the Property, and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a 
public hearing on the rezoning request on July 26, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended approval of the proposed request by a vote of 6-0; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on 
August 14, 2018 to consider the Applicant’s request; and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the 
information provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City Council 
finds that it is in the public interest to approve the rezoning. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    The Property, situated on 0.70 acres of Lot 67, within the Bastrop 
Town Tract Abstract 11 located at 1706 Farm Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, 
Texas as more particularly shown and described on attachments Exhibit “A”, shall be 
rezoned to district MF-1, Multifamily 1. 
 

Section 2:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, 



2 
 

or application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. 
 

Section 3:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted 
below, or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in 
accordance with the City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

 
READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 14th day of August 2018. 

 
 READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 28th day of August 2018. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 



SH 95
FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CP JOHNSON

Attachment 1
Location Map 

Rezone Request 
Farms End Estates ³Date: 7/20/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CH
AM

BE
RS

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«95

¬«150

0 80 16040 Feet



SH
 95

FARM

SPRING

C
P 

JO
H

N
SO

N

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

Attachment 1
Zoning Map

Rezoning Request
CMU, Commercial Mixed Use to MF-1, Multi-Family 1 ³Date: 7/20/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 210.26 feet

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CH
AM

BE
RS

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«95

Legend
Label

Farms End Rezone

FBC Area

Legend
Farms End Rezone

Form Based Code Area

Zoning District
Neighborhood

Live/Work

Commercial Mixed Use

Civic/Cultural Arts

Downtown Mixed Use

Historic Main Street

Ag/Open Space

Single Family Residential 20

Single Family Residential 7

Manufacured Home

Multi-Family-1

Multi-Family-2

General Retail

Commercial-1

Commercial-2









SH
 95

FARM

SPRING

C
P 

JO
H

N
SO

N

C
P JO

H
N

SO
N

POS

RURALRES

NGHBCMCL

NGHBCMCL RURALRES
RURALRES

NGHBCMCL

NGHBCMCL

NGHBCMCL

DOWNTOWN

Attachment 4
Future Land Use Map

Rezoning Request
CMU, Commercial Mixed Use to MF-1, Multi-Family 1 ³Date: 7/20/2018

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 156.5 feet

FARM

SPRING

CP
 JO

HN
SO

N

CH
AM

BE
RS

CP JOHNSON

¬«21
¬«95

Legend
Label

Farms End Rezone

FBC Area

Legend
Farms End Rezone

Form Based Code Area

Proposed Land Use
Land Use Description

Parks and Open Space

Rural Residential

Neighborhood Residential

Transitional Residential

Neighborhood Commercial

General Commercial

Professional Services

Downtown Bastrop

Public and Institutional

Industrial



Public hearing and consider action to approve Ordinance 2018-16 to rezone
0.70 acres, within the Bastrop Town Tract Abstract 11, from Form-Based
Code Character Zone CMU – Commercial Mixed Use, to MF-1 – Multifamily 1,
located at 1706 Farm Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; as
shown in Exhibit A; including a severability clause; and establishing an
effective date and move to include on the August 28, 2018 consent agenda
for second reading.



Request
• Approve a rezoning of 0.70 acres to go from Commercial Mixed 

Use in the Form-based Code to Multifamily 1
• The owner is in the process of subdividing the property into new lot 

configurations.  

Existing Lot Configuration New Lot Configuration



Existing Zoning
• The new lot configuration 

leaves one of the lots with a 
split-zoning designation.

• The zoning request aligns to 
the new lot lines.



Location
• 1706 Farm Street
• 0.70 acres of Farm 

Lot 67 (Bastrop Town 
Tract Abstract 11)



Policy Explanation
• Staff recommends the amendment of the zoning district to MF-1. 

• The zoning designation keeps the delineation of the form-based code area 
along a lot line and remedies the issue of a split-zoned lot. 

• The lot currently zoned CMU is getting smaller but is still large enough to 
conform to the CMU zoning requirements. 

• The portion of the lot that is moving from the CMU zoned lot to the MF-1 
zoned lot is requested to match the MF-1 zoning.



Staff Recommendation
• Hold Public Hearing
• Recommend approval of the rezoning request from CMU to MF-1.



Planning & Zoning Recommendation
• The P&Z recommended approval of the rezoning request by a vote of 6-0 

at the July 26, 2018 meeting.



Questions?



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM: 11D 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-14 of the City Council of the 
City of Bastrop, Texas,  amending the budget for the Fiscal Year 2018 in accordance with existing 
statutory requirements; appropriating the various amounts herein; as attached in Exhibit A; 
repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict herewith; providing for an effective date and 
move to include on the August 28, 2018, consent agenda for a second reading.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The budget amendments do, in some funds, increase the budget appropriations for Fiscal Year 
2018. Funds included in these amendments are detailed below: 

General Fund includes: 
• Sales tax revenue is projected to be above the budgeted amount which affects the 

amount that must be rebated through the City’s current 380 agreements. This 
amendment increases revenue and the related expense to be able to pay these 
rebates final quarterly payment. 

• Building permits actual revenue is over the budgeted amount due to increased 
development activity. This, and the lack of a Building Official, has caused the City to 
use a third-party inspection company. This amendment increases the revenue budget 
and the related expense for professional services. 

• The City received funds from FEMA for Hurricane Harvey during this fiscal year. This 
amendment increases the revenue budget and the related expense for emergency 
management. 

• This amendment reclassifies available funds in contingency to the purchase of zero 
client computers for the Library. 
 

Debt Service Fund includes: 
• Ad Valorem Tax Revenue received over budgeted amount will be used to cover 

change in interest owed on the 2005 & 2006 Bond issues, increase in Fiscal agency 
fees, and 380 agreement reimbursements for ad valorem rebates. The increase in the 
budgeted revenue will be offset by the related expenses. 
 

Electric Fund includes: 
• Received the line extension fee for Piney Creek subdivision. Need amendment to 

increase the revenue budget along with the expense budget to allow the electric 
department to order materials related to this project. 
 



 

Hospitality & Downtown Fund includes: 
• Main Street Program received a grant from the Bastrop Economic Development Corp. 

for $50,000 for beautification projects (board approved May 21, 2018). Need this 
amendment to increase the revenue budget and the related expense for this project. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 

• The City Charter requires that when the budget is amended, that the amendment be 
by Ordinance. 

 
• The Financial Management Policy state that the level of budgetary control is the 

department level in all funds. When adjustments/transfers are required between 
departments and funds, these must be approved by City Council through an 
Ordinance. The Financial Management Policy further states that the contingency 
account can be increased by the amount available from vacancy savings on a quarterly 
basis. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2018-14 of the City Council of the 
City of Bastrop, Texas,  amending the budget for the Fiscal Year 2018 in accordance with existing 
statutory requirements; appropriating the various amounts herein; as attached in Exhibit A; 
repealing all prior ordinances and actions in conflict herewith; providing for an effective date and 
move to include on the August 28, 2018, consent agenda for a second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Ordinance 2018-14 
• Exhibit “A” 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-14 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH EXISTING STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS; 
APPROPRIATING THE VARIOUS AMOUNTS HEREIN; AS ATTACHED IN 
EXHIBIT A: REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND ACTIONS IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
        WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Bastrop has submitted to the Mayor and City 
Council proposed amendment(s) to the budget of the revenues and/or expenditures/expenses 
of conducting the affairs of said city and providing a complete financial plan for Fiscal Year 
2018; and 
 
        WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have now provided for and conducted a public 
hearing on the budget as provided by law.   
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1: That the proposed budget amendments for the Fiscal Year 2018, as 
submitted to the City Council by the City Manager and which budget amendments are attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, are hereby adopted and approved as the amended budget of said city for 
Fiscal Year 2018. 

 
Section 2:     This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas. 
 
Section 3:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or 
application thereof, of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable. 

 
Section 4:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted below, 

or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in accordance with the 
City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of Texas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



READ and APPROVED on First Reading on the 14th day of August 2018. 
 
READ and ADOPTED on Second Reading on the 28th day of August 2018. 
 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
     ________________________________   
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 



Audited Fund Balance as of 9-30-17 3,261,139$          

FY2018  Budgeted Revenues 10,712,030$        
FY2018  Budgeted Expenses (10,712,030)$       

 
1/2018 Budget Amendments (net) (252,328)$            
4/2018 Budget Amendments (net) -$                     
8/2018 Budget Amendments (net) -$                     
Ending Fund Balance 3,008,811$          (25% policy = $2,678,008)

 

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #

Organizational Neutral $6,075 Emergemcy Management Assistance 101-00-00-4410
Organizational Neutral $50,000 City Sales Tax 101-00-00-4006

Planning & Development Neutral $100,000 Building Permits 101-00-00-4020
Total Revenues $156,075

                                            

Organizational Neutral ($6,075) Emergency Management expenses 101-02-00-5521
Organizational Neutral ($50,000) 380 Agreemennt Reimbursement-Sales Tax 101-02-00-5644

Planning & Development Neutral ($100,000) Professional Services 101-15-00-5505

Organizational Decrease $12,000 Contingency 101-02-00-5900
Information Technology Increase ($12,000) Computer Equipment 101-07-00-5207

Organizational Increase $0 Contingency 101-02-00-5900
Total Expenditures ($156,075)

Net Change $0

Exhibit "A"

New Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

 

FY 2018
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

GENERAL FUND

New Revenue:



Audited Fund Balance as of 9-30-17 62,817    
FY 2017  Budgeted Revenues 2,565,113  
FY 2017 Budgeted Appropriations (2,354,274)  

8/2018 Budget Amendment 0  
Ending Fund Balance 273,656

  
BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT NUMBER

Neutral 11,000 Current Taxes 120-00-00-4001

     
Total Revenues 11,000                                              

Neutral (1,448) 380 Agreement Reimb. 120-00-00-5644
Neutral (5,200) General Obligation Bond 2005-Interest 120-00-00-7114
Neutral (2,000) Certificate of Obligation Bond 2006-Interest 120-00-00-7116
Neutral (2,352) Fiscal Agency Fees 120-00-00-7999

Total Expense (11,000)

Net Change 0

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

FY 2018
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
 



Operating Fund Balance as of 9/30/17 4,264,411    

FY2018 Budgeted Revenues 7,323,696  

FY2018 Budgeted Appropriations (7,908,734)  

 

4/2018 Budget Amendments (net) $0.00

8/2018 Budget Amendments (net) $0.00

Ending Fund Balance 3,679,373   

  
DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT NUMBER

Neutral 154,000 Line Extension Fees 404-00-00-4312

     
Total Revenues 154,000                                              

Neutral (154,000) Line Extension Expense 404-60-00-6099

Total Expense (154,000)

Net Change 0

New Expenditures:

FY 2018
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

BP&L
 

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:



Audited Fund Balance 9/30/17 823,826  

FY 2018  Budgeted Revenues 1,034,788  

FY 2018 Budgeted Appropriations (1,027,522)  

 

8/2018 Budget Amendments (net) 0
Ending Fund Balance 831,092

 

DEPARTMENT BUDGET AMOUNT DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT #

                                              
Neutral 50,000 BEDC Support Funding 502-00-00-4493

Total Revenue 50,000

Neutral (50,000) Downtown Beautification 502-00-80-5920

Total Expense (50,000)
Net Change 0

   

FY 2018
BUDGET AMENDMENTS

HOSPITALITY & DOWNTOWN
 

New Expenditures:

Matching Revenues to Expenditures:

Matching Expenditures to Revenues:

New Expenditures:



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM: 11E 
  
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-59  of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, awarding a contract, attached as Exhibit A, for the installation of holiday lighting to Décor 
IQ in the amount of One Hundred Nine Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Five and 00/100 Dollars 
($109,525.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; providing for a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
   
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works & Leisure Services 

   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
This item is identified in the Work Plan as UE#7 (Unique Environment), which is “Improve 
Christmas Lighting at Fisherman’s Park & Downtown.” City Council and the Executive Team have 
put a great deal of effort into developing an Organizational Work Plan that addresses nine focus 
areas that are identified as drivers to successfully fulfill the City’s Mission & Vision. 2017 was the 
first year to improve the holiday lighting and we received a great deal of positive feedback. This 
year’s proposal includes lighting downtown, as well as in Fisherman’s Park, at a cost of 
$74,525.00, and includes a tunnel option, at a cost of $35,000.00. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
A Request-for-Proposal (RFP) was developed to provide holiday lighting for Fisherman’s Park 
and Main Street.  Décor IQ provided per unit pricing detail, which is attached as Exhibit A to the 
Resolution.  Funding of $125,000 is provided in the FY 2019 Budget for Christmas Lights.  This 
project will not exceed the budgeted amount.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
These funds are budgeted for FY19. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2018-59  of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, awarding a contract, attached as Exhibit A, for the installation of holiday lighting to Décor 
IQ in the amount of One Hundred Nine Thousand Five Hundred Twenty Five and 00/100 Dollars 
($109,525.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; providing for a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution 
• Holiday Lighting Request for Proposal 
• Draft Contract with Décor IQ 

 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-59   

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AWARDING A CONTRACT, ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT A, FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF HOLIDAY LIGHTING TO DÉCOR IQ, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
ONE HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE AND 00/100 
DOLLARS ($109,525.00); AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 

Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council has the vision to improve Bastrop’s Unique Environment 
through enhancing programming to a four diamond, AAA standard Christmas; and 

  
  WHEREAS, Improving the holiday lighting at Fisherman’s Park and on Main Street meets 

that intent and is Item UE#7 in the City’s Workplan; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Bastrop has received all proposals, and found the lowest 
responsible bidder to be qualified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract for the 

installation of holiday lighting in Fisherman’s Park and on Main Street with Décor IQ in an amount 
of $109,525.00, which is attached as Exhibit A. 

  
Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Bastrop has found Décor IQ, to be a 

subject matter expert in the field of holiday lighting. 
 

Section 3: All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in 
conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein. 
  

Section 4:  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it 
is so resolved.  
 
  



2 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 14th 
day of August, 2018. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 

 
 

















































































































 

CHRISTMAS LIGHT INSTALLATION CONTRACT 
 

THIS CONTRACT made effective as of the ___ day of _______, 20__. 
 
BETWEEN: 
 

DecorIQ, LLC 
25014 Kiowa Creek 

San Antonio, TX 78255 
(hereinafter called the “Installer”) 

 
- and - 

 
The Customer Identified in Schedule “A” - Customer Information Attached Hereto and Made Part of 

this Contract 
(hereinafter called “Customer”) 

 
Customer hereby retains Installer to provide the services and items set out in this Contract, on the 
following terms and conditions: 
 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Duties of Installer 

(a) Installer will perform the installation at the property identified in Schedule “A” (the “Property”). 

(b) The services and items to be supplied by Installer (collectively referred to as the “Display”) are 
listed on Schedule “B” (attached hereto and made a part of this Contract by reference). 

(c) As far as possible, Installer will use Customer’s written, verbal or pictorial description to design 
the Display, in accordance with the price quote contained on Schedule “A” hereof. If Customer 
requests any changes in design, color, or location after installation of the Display has begun, 
Customer may be charged additional installation fees.  

(d) Customer acknowledges that Installer cannot guarantee consistent light bulb orientation in the 
Display, due to the twisting nature of the light strands.  

(e) Installer will only use top quality products to complete the installation, including but not limited 
to longer-life bulbs, UL-rated outdoor extension cords, and commercial-grade specialty lighting. 

(f) Installer will use best efforts to ensure that no damage is done to the Property, however, Installer 
can make no guarantees in this regard. Installer’s technicians will obtain Customer’s consent 
before using staples, hooks or other fasteners that may damage the exterior of the Property. 

(g) Customer acknowledges that any changes to Customer’s design may require additional supplies 
or labor, and may result in additional fees being charged. Changes requested by Customer to 
installations already in progress will be charged at the rate of $60 per hour plus materials. 

(h) Upon completion, all displays shall be inspected by Contractor and a representative of Customer 
to ensure that the displays meet with Customer’s approval. 



- 2 - 

(i) Contractor shall have personnel available to respond to emergency repairs upon 48 hours’ notice 
from __________ [insert date] to __________ [insert date]. Customer agrees to pay additional 
charges of $60 per hour for any emergency call responses between 9 PM and 6 AM. 

(j) With respect to interior installations, Contractor shall not drill holes or insert fasteners or 
hardware into any wall or floor without Customer approval. All glue and tape residue must be 
removed when the displays are dismantled, and each area must be returned to its original 
condition. Contractor will be responsible for the cost to repair any damages that occur as a result 
of the installation or removal of the displays. 

(k) Installer shall not overload any electrical circuits with more lights than the circuit can safely 
accommodate. 

(l) All lights, cords, and décor items will remain the property of the installer unless otherwise 
provided by customer. 

(m) Removal of the Display is included in the installation fee, and will take place on a date mutually 
agreed to by the parties. Installer will dismantle the Display and store in the appropriate location. 
If display is leased, installer will provide storage for those particular items. When installing 
customer owned displays it is the customer’s responsibility to store the display. If storage is 
needed the installer can provide for an additional cost. 

(n) Removal of the displays must be completed no earlier than __________ [insert date] and no later 
than __________ [insert date]. 

 
2. Invoices; Payments 

(a) Customer agrees to pay Contractor for the Services in accordance with the rates set out in the 
Price Quotation attached as Schedule “A”. 
 

(b) Terms of the agreement are: 50% deposit, 25% after completion of installation and 25% after the 
Display is removed. 

(c) Invoices unpaid for more than 15 calendar days after the same become due will bear interest at 
the rate of 1.5% per month (18% per year), or the maximum amount allowed by law (whichever is 
higher), from the due date until paid. 

(d) Overdue payments will be applied firstly to accrued interest and secondly to the unpaid 
principal balance. 

(e) Damaged or missing items that are leased will be charged at full retail replacement cost. 

(f) If Customer wishes to dispute any item on Installer’s invoice, the dispute must be made to 
Installer’s Customer Service department at 214-728-4532 within 15 days of receipt of the invoice. 

 
3. Responsibilities of Customer 

(a) Customer must ensure that the location(s) is/are empty and prepared for Contractor’s employees 
to begin installing the displays on the agreed installation date, and that Contractor’s employees 
will have clear and unblocked access to the location(s). 

(b) Customer must provide adequate electrical power to run the displays. 



- 3 - 

(c) Customer agrees to provide bathroom facilities for Contractor’s employees.  

(d) Customer is responsible for making sure that someone is at on site to allow Installer’s employee’s 
access to the Property on the agreed dates for installation and removal of the Display. 

(e) It is Customer’s responsibility to ensure that the Display can be installed and completed 
according to the design. If Installer is unable to use standard fastening methods to install the 
Display due to non-standard or non-conforming elements of the Property (such as eaves, roof 
edges, porch railings, etc), additional charges may apply. 

(f) When installing banners on light poles, it is the responsibility of the customer to ensure that the 
poles can withstand the wind resistance against the banner. Installer will not be responsible for 
damages caused or incurred from the potential risk associated with this type of installation. 

 
4. Safety Requirements 

(a) At all times when installation is blocking or impeding traffic thoroughfares, appropriate warning 
signs must be used to notify motorists and traffic cones placed to direct traffic around 
Contractor’s crews during installation. 

(b) Contractor’s employees shall wear appropriate safety gear at all times during the installations. 

(c) Contractor shall ensure that any aerial lifts, bucket trucks or other heavy equipment used in 
connection with the installations are operated only by properly licensed operators. 

 
5. Disposal of Trash 

Contractor shall be responsible for removal and proper disposal of all trash and debris created by the 
installations. 
 
6. Cancellations 

All cancellations must be in writing and signed by Customer or, if Customer is a body corporate or other 
entity, by an authorized representative of Customer. A cancellation by Customer within 72 hours of 
service is subject to a late cancellation fee of $1000 plus and products purchased. 
 
7. Installer’s Right to Refuse Service 

Installer reserves the right to refuse to install the Display if, in Installer’s sole opinion: 

(a) installing the Display according to Customer’s specifications may pose a hazard or create an 
unsafe environment for persons or property in the vicinity of the Display; or 

(b) any part of the Property upon which the Display is to be installed may be unsafe or pose a hazard 
for Installer’s workers while preparing the site and/or installing the Display; or 

(c) Customer has failed to provide adequate power sources to run the Display. 
 
8. Warranty 

(a) Installer will test all lights at the completion of the installation and will leave the Display fully 
functional. Leased items in the Display will include a warranty through the end of December and 
there is no warranty provided on customer owned items that were installed. The Installer will replace 



- 4 - 

any defective or non-working items within 48 hours upon being notified in writing by Customer. 
Items not covered under warranty will be billed at time and materials.  
 

(b) Installer will not be responsible for any defects or damage associated with weather conditions or 
vandalism, including but not limited to wind, rain, snow, ice, extreme cold or theft. Repairs will be 
billed at time and materials. 

 
9. Installer Not Liable 

Installer, its owners, employees, agents and subcontractors shall not be held liable for any damage to the 
Property due to the installation, including damage caused by light clips, staples, hooks or other means of 
attaching the Display according to Customer’s approved design, or for losses suffered by Customer or 
other persons on Customer’s property for inconvenience, personal discomfort, or temporary loss of use or 
enjoyment of the Property as a result of Customer’s decision to retain Installer’s services hereunder. 
 
10. Taxes 

Contractor shall be responsible for remitting its own income taxes, worker’s compensation and other 
employment taxes. 
 
11. Permits and Licenses; Compliance with Laws 

Contractor shall procure any required permits or licenses, pay all charges, taxes and fees, and give all 
notices necessary and incidental to the provision of its services. Contractor shall comply with all federal, 
state, county and municipal laws, regulations and codes pertaining to the performance of its obligations 
hereunder. 
 
12. Indemnification 

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Customer, its officers, directors, employees, agents 
and representatives from and against any and all actions, costs, claims, losses, expenses and/or damages, 
including legal fees, whether incurred prior to the institution of litigation, during litigation, or on appeal 
arising out of or resulting from the conduct of any activity hereby authorized or the performance of any 
requirement imposed pursuant to this Contract, however caused or occasioned, unless caused by the 
willful misconduct or gross negligence of Customer. 
 
13. Insurance 

Installer agrees to maintain, at its sole expense, comprehensive general liability insurance at a minimum 
amount of $1,000,000.00, and to indemnify and hold Customer harmless from any and all claims arising 
from any negligent act or omission of Installer. Installer is responsible for carrying worker’s 
compensation insurance on its employees. Installer shall provide Customer with proof of any such 
insurance, upon request. 
 
14. Marketing Rights 

Installer reserves the right, and Customer hereby grants Installer the right, to use photographs and/or 
video images of the Property for Installer’s marketing purposes. 
 
15. Independent Contractor 

The parties agree that Installer is an independent contractor, and that this Contract does not create a 
relationship of employment, partnership, joint venture or otherwise between the parties. 



- 5 - 

 
16. Miscellaneous Provisions 

(a) This Contract constitutes the entire agreement, whether written or verbal, between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall not be supplemented, modified or amended 
except by an instrument in writing executed by both parties. 

(b) Installer shall not be held liable for any delay or inability to perform its obligations hereunder 
due to accidents, acts of God, inclement weather or other circumstances beyond Installer’s 
reasonable control. 

(c) This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Texas. Any 
legal actions, claims or demands shall be handled in a court of competent jurisdiction within 
Texas. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract on the date first above written. 
 
By or on behalf of By or on behalf of 
[NAME OF CUSTOMER]: DecorIQ, LLC: 
 
 
    
Signature  Signature  
 
    
Print Name & Title (if any)  Print Name & Title (if any) 



- 6 - 

Schedule “A” 
Customer Information 

 

CUSTOMER NAME:  

Billing Address: 
 

 

City / State (Prov) / Zip (Postal) Code  

Phone Number(s): Work: Residence: 
Mobile: Pager: 
Fax: 

Email Address(es):  

Method of Payment: 
_____ Cash ____ Company check 

_____ PO # _____________ Deposit paid: $_________ 

Address of the property at which the 
Display is to be installed: 

 

 

Price Quote* 

 
Installation fee  $###.## 

Additional hours will be billed at the rate of $60/hour. 
 
 
 
 
 
Sales tax $###.## 
 
TOTAL DUE: $###.## 
 

 
Date: _____/___/_____ 
 
Customer Signature: __________________________________________________ 

 



- 7 - 

Schedule “B” 
Items and Services to be Provided in the Installation 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018      AGENDA ITEM:  12A 
 
TITLE:   
City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the 
Texas Government Code to confer with City Attorney regarding legal advice related to the status 
of reviewing and updating the city’s regulatory program, including public comment and citizen 
input into the new subdivision ordinance, pending revisions to zoning and sign codes, capital 
improvements plan, uniformity of the permits process, and limited stay of processing certain 
permits, authorizations and approvals, and drainage improvements.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   August 14, 2018       AGENDA ITEM:  13 
 
 
TITLE:   
Conduct a Public Hearing and take any necessary or appropriate action on matters posted for 
consideration in closed / executive session 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   


	August 14 2018 Council Agenda - Executed
	1A - 1 Operation of Hunters Crossing
	1B - 1 Development Review Process
	2 - Executive Session Action
	6A - 1  Staff Report- Receive Presentation from the YMCA of Austin- Bastrop Branch. O'Brien
	6A - 2 YMCA - 2018 Agreement Recreation Services
	6A - 3  YMCA- 2018 Agreement Services for State Park Pool
	6A - 4  YMCA- 2018 Charitable Services Agreement
	6A-5 YMCA Presentation
	BASTROP Y�STRONGER TOGETHER
	TRAINING AND SUPPORTTHE Y COMES WITH RESOURCES�
	HOW WE SERVE�WELCOMING TO ALL
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	GIVING BACK�STRENGHTENING COMMUNITY�
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	6B - 1 Mayor's Report
	6B - 2 Mayor 14Aug2018
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Planned Events�August 3 – August 14
	Slide Number 4

	6C - Councilmembers' Report
	6D - City Manager's Report
	7A - 1  Communit Support Application Staff Report
	7A - 2  Letter to Applicant
	7A - 3  2019 CS Application Form draft_revision
	7B - Staff City Manager Briefing on FY 2019 Budget
	9 - Citizen Comments
	10A - 1 Staff Report Minutes
	10A - 2 MINUTES 07-24-2018
	STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS
	6A. Receive monthly report from Visit Bastrop.
	Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron.
	6C.  Receive presentation on the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending June 30, 2018.
	Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron.
	6D. Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2019 Community Support Funding.
	Presentations were from:
	Austin Habitat of Humanties
	Bastrop County Child Welfare Board
	Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry and Support Center
	Bastrop County Long Term Recovery Team
	Bastrop County Women’s Shelter, doing business as Family Crisis Center
	Bastrop Pregnancy Resource Center
	Boys & Girls Club of Austin and Travis County, Inc.
	Mayor Schroeder recessed the Council Meeting at 8:06 p.m.
	Mayor Schroeder called the meeting back to order at 8:11 p.m.
	6D. Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2019 Community Support Funding. CONTINUED
	Presentations were from:
	Children’s Advocacy Center
	Combined Community Action
	Court Appointed Special Advocates
	Feed the Need Missions
	In the Streets Hands Up High Ministry
	Literacy Vouteers of Bastrop

	10A - 3 MINUTES 08-07-2018
	11A - 1 CC Staff Report Quiktrip 1st
	11A - 2 Ordinance
	11A - 3 Exhibit A - Location Map
	11A - 4 Attachments
	JCB 1 - 4 Attachment 1 - Updated Zoning Cover Letter
	JCB 1 - 6 Attachment 3 - Zoning Map
	JCB 1 - 7 Attachment 4 - Future Land Use Map
	JCB 1 - 8 Attachment 5 - Aerial Location Map

	11A - 5 Power Point
	Slide Number 1
	Request	
	Location
	1991 Zoning
	Future Land Use
	Section 10 – Changes and Amendments to All Zoning Ordinances and Districts
	Development Process
	Traffic Impact Analysis
	Slide Number 9
	Staff Recommendation
	Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendation
	Slide Number 12

	11B - 1 CC Staff Report
	ITEM DETAILS:
	BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
	POLICY EXPLANATION:
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION:
	The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended by a vote of 6-0 to approve the Conditional Use Permit for the religious institution use with the following conditions.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	11B - 2 Ordinance Bastrop Bible Church
	11B - 3 Exhibit A - Location Map
	11B - 4 Attachments
	Attachment 1 - Conceptual Plans
	scan1
	scan2
	scan3

	Attachment 3 - Zoning Map

	11B - 5 Powerpoint
	Slide Number 1
	Request	
	Zoning
	Location
	FBC Section 5.2 Conditional Use Permit Regulations
	CUP Conditions
	Staff recommendation
	Planning & Zoning Commission Recommendation
	Slide Number 9

	11C - 1 CC Staff Report
	PLANNING & ZONING RECOMMENDATION:
	The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended by a vote of 6-0 to approve the rezoning request.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	11C - 2 Ordinance
	11C - 3 Exhibit A - Location Map
	11C - 4 Attachments
	Attachment 1 - Zoning Map
	Attachment 2 - Letter from Applicant
	Attachment 3 - Property Owner Response .
	Attachment 4 - FLUM

	11C - 5 Powerpoint
	Slide Number 1
	Request	
	 Existing Zoning
	Location
	Policy Explanation
	Staff Recommendation
	Planning & Zoning Recommendation
	Slide Number 8

	11D - 1  Budget Amendment Staff Report 1
	11D - 2  Budget Amendment Ordinance 2018-05
	ORDINANCE NO. 2018-14

	11D - 3  Budget Amendment Exhibit A
	11E - 1 Staff Report Resolution to Award Contract for Holiday Lighting Installation to Decor IQ Company (2)
	11E - 2 Resolution to Award Contract for Installation of Holiday Lighting to Decor IQ in the amount of $109,525.00
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2018-59

	11E - 3 RFP for Holiday Lighting 2018
	11E - 4 Draft Contract for Holiday Lighting Decor IQ
	12A - Development Review 2
	13 - Executive Session Action 2



